
 

 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, December 18th, 2017 

6:00 p.m. 

Hampden Town Office 

1. Meeting Minutes  

a. December 4, 2017 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants 

 

3. Old Business  

 

a. Recommend approval of the proposed amendments to the Transfer 
Station Decal Issuance Policy – referral from Services Committee 
 

b. Recommend approval of the proposed amendments to the Transfer 
Station Rules and Regulations – referral from Services Committee 
 

4. New Business 
 

a. Recommend Council authorization for a budget adjustment of the 
FY18 budget, to transfer the amount of $100,000 from Overlay into 
the Municipal Building Reserve (3-702-00) 
 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an amount 
up to $100,000 from the Municipal Building Reserve (3-702-00) for 
the purpose of paying for mold remediation and related expenses 
 

c. Recommend Council authorization for waiver, pursuant to Sec. 4(a) 
of the Bid Procedure for Public Purchasing, to allow for the 
procurement of mold remediation and related expenses using a 
quotation system instead of an Invitation for Bids, to reduce the 
bidding cost and the amount of time needed for completion  
 

d. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of $1,000 from 
the Matching Grant Reserve (3-780-00) for the purpose of paying 
Hampden’s portion of a Safety Enhancement Grant for two SCBA 
masks – requested by Lieutenant Lundstrom  
 

e. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of $4,036 from 
the Environmental Trust, Principal for the purpose of reimbursement 
of eligible landfill post-closure monitoring expenses – referral from 
Environmental Trust Committee 
 



 

 

f. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of $1,275.95 
from the Environmental Trust, Income for the purpose of 
reimbursement of eligible stormwater management expenses – 
referral from Environmental Trust Committee 
 

g. Recommend Council authorization for waiver, pursuant to Sec. 4(a) 
of the Bid Procedure for Public Purchasing, to allow for the 
procurement of a replacement dock at the Marina using a quotation 
system instead of an Invitation for Bids, due to a limited number of 
qualified vendors  
 

h. Recommendation to Town Council regarding re-appointment of 
Lowell Sherwood to the Board of Assessment Review 
 

i. Recommend an abatement of a portion of third quarter sewer 
charges for resident Seren Bruce at 29 Sunrise Lane  
 

5. Public Comment 
 

6. Committee Member Comments 
 

7. Adjournment 



 

 

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

Monday, December 4th, 2017 

MINUTES – DRAFT   

Hampden Town Office 

Attending:  
Councilor Greg Sirois, Chair  Councilor Stephen Wilde  

 Councilor Mark Cormier   Town Manager Angus Jennings  
Mayor Ivan McPike    Rec Director Shelley Abbott  

 Councilor Dennis Marble   Pool Director Darcey Peakall  
 Councilor Terry McAvoy   Rec Comm member Jane Jarvi 
 Councilor David Ryder   Auditor Kellie Bowden 
       Special Counsel Kate Grossman 
 
Chairman Sirois called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

1. Meeting Minutes  

a. November 6, 2017 – There was a motion by Councilor McAvoy 

seconded by Councilor Ryder to approve the minutes. Approved 6-0. 

b. November 20, 2017 – There was a motion by Councilor McAvoy 

seconded by Mayor McPike to approve the minutes. Approved 6-0. 

 

2. Review & Sign Warrants – Warrants were reviewed and signed. 

 

3. Old Business  

a. Meeting with Auditor regarding process to complete transition 
from the enterprise method of accounting to revenue and 
expense method of accounting in the recreation and pool 
departments through transfer of funds from clearing accounts 
to reserve accounts – Manager Jennings summarized the materials 
in the packet, and noted that the Auditor was here and available for 
questions. Chairman Sirois called for questions. Councilor McAvoy 
said that putting the funds into reserve as recommended would be 
inappropriate, referring to the funds in the clearing accounts as “illicit 
gains.” He said that, had the appropriate accounting practices been 
in place, these revenues would have offset costs that were borne by 
taxpayers. He said he thinks the funds should go to the General 
Fund.  
 
Councilor Marble said his understanding is that the taxation budget 
supported core Rec and Pool staff, with the balance of costs covered 
by program revenues, and revenues coming from there being 
available for related purposes. He noted that some funds probably 
came from donations – not program fees – and Councilor McAvoy 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
1-a



 

 

said he would have no objection to researching which portion of the 
revenues came from donations so those could be available for those 
purposes. 
 
Manager Jennings noted that there is documentation over the years 
setting out the basic enterprise funding structure, along with the 
policy intent that any funds above enterprise costs would be made 
available for those programs. He said that today’s Council may or 
may not agree with the policy objectives of previous Councils that 
budgeted in this way, but that he thinks based on documentation on 
record that the previous Councils had their eyes wide open, and 
intentionally budgeted in this way for that reason. 
 
Chairman Sirois asked if there were questions for the Auditor. 
Councilor McAvoy asked if this use of enterprise budgeting was an 
appropriate accounting method. Ms. Bowden said that it was. 
Councilor McAvoy asked if this use of enterprise budgeting was set 
up legitimately. Ms. Bowden said that it was. 
 
Councilor McAvoy asked if there are other reserve accounts with the 
type of balances we’re looking at here – a couple of hundred 
thousand. Ms. Bowden said she thinks that some reserve accounts, 
such as ambulance and fire truck reserves, reach these levels of 
funding. 
 
Manager Jennings said that, by making the funds available for future 
needs through reserve funding, this would insulate property tax 
payers from absorbing all of these costs. Chairman Sirois said that 
the large amount of funds that has built up illustrates, in his opinion, 
that the Town has not invested properly in Rec and Pool facilities. 
 

4. New Business 
a. Recommend Council authorization for the transfer of 

$224,665.43, plus any amount added as a result of close-out of 
the FY17 Audit, from Recreation Clearing Account (1-199-01) to 
Recreation Area Reserve (3-767-00) – Chairman Sirois introduced 
the item for discussion. Motion by Councilor Marble, seconded by 
Mayor McPike, to recommend Council authorization for the transfer 
of $224,665.43, plus any amount added as a result of close-out of the 
FY17 Audit, from the Recreation Clearing Account to the Recreation 
Area Reserve. Mayor McPike asked when that transfer would happen 
and Manager Jennings said that, if it is authorized, it could be 
transferred any time afterward. He said this would involve cutting a 
check from reserve to general fund, and recording it through an 
accounting journal entry. Chairman Sirois called for public comment 



 

 

but there was none. The motion passed 5-1 with Councilor McAvoy 
opposed. 
 

b. Recommend Council authorization for the transfer of $58,452.92, 
plus any amount added as a result of close-out of the FY17 
Audit, from Pool Clearing Account (1-111-05) to Pool Facility 
Reserve (3-771-00) – Chairman Sirois introduced the item for 
discussion. Motion by Mayor McPike, seconded by Councilor Marble, 
to recommend Council authorization for the transfer of $58,452.92, 
plus any amount added as a result of close-out of the FY17 Audit, 
from the Pool Clearing Account to the Pool Reserve. Councilor 
Marble said that it appears that the Rec Department and citizen 
volunteers have done a better job planning for long-term expenses 
than the Town has, in some ways. Chairman Sirois called for public 
comment but there was none. The motion passed 5-1 with Councilor 
McAvoy opposed. 

 
c. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of an 

amount up to $2,592.00 from the Personnel Reserve Account (3-
733-00) for the purpose of offsetting costs associated with 
payroll expenses for a temporary part-time worker – Motion by 
Mayor McPike seconded by Councilor Marble to recommend Council 
authorization for the expenditure of an amount up to $2,592.00 from 
the Personnel Reserve Account for the purpose of offsetting costs 
associated with payroll expenses for a temporary part-time worker. 
Motion passed 6-0. 

 
d. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of 

$2,542.04 from the Municipal Building Reserve Account (3-702-
00) for repairs to HVAC at Town Office – Motion by Councilor 
Marble seconded by Mayor McPike to recommend Council 
authorization of the requested reserve funding. During discussion, 
Councilor Marble asked how often we re-bid routine building 
maintenance services. Manager Jennings said that specific projects 
such as the Library lighting upgrade had been re-bid but that he’s 
continuing to work with several vendors who have worked on the 
Town buildings in the past. He noted that he thinks it makes sense to 
re-bid work every 3 years or so but that doing so competes for time 
against other responsibilities. Councilor Ryder noted that some of the 
HVAC repairs appear to include work, such as checking blowers, that 
he thinks staff could perform. Manager Jennings said he would look 
into it. The motion passed 6-0. 

 
e. Recommend Council authorization for the expenditure of $1,300 

from the Municipal Building Reserve Account (3-702-00) for 
repairs to the leaking roof at Town Office – Motion by Councilor 



 

 

Marble seconded by Mayor McPike to recommend Council 
authorization of the requested reserve funding. Motion passed 6-0.  

 
Because Atty. Grossman was present, the Committee agreed to take Item G out 
of order. 

 
g. Informational update from Special Counsel Kate Grossman, 

Esq., of Farrell, Rosenblatt & Russell regarding litigation with 
Acadia Hospital Corp. regarding applicability of Service Charge 
Ordinance – Manager Jennings introduced Atty. Grossman, noting 
that he had engaged special counsel because of Rudman Winchell’s 
representation of Acadia Hospital. Atty. Grossman summarized the 
basic legal question related to the definition of student housing, but 
also noted that the Court may not find that the actual use of the 
property by the non-owner tenant is relevant to the applicability of the 
Service Charge Ordinance. Councilor McAvoy asked about potential 
outcomes based on a Court decision and Atty. Grossman cautioned 
that the case is very fact specific and that she expects that the Court 
would make a very narrow ruling based on the particular facts of the 
case. Manager Jennings noted that the Council has discussed 
potential transition away from the Ordinance in favor of voluntary 
PILOT agreements with specific property owners, and there was 
discussion among the Committee about this. Councilor Marble said 
that, if a PILOT program is explored, he’d like to see it based on a 
clear mission statement beyond simply raising revenue.  

 
f. Update on RSU-22 proposed February 2018 Referendum 

regarding replacement of artificial turf field at Hampden 
Academy – Manager Jennings summarized the materials in the 
packet, and noted that the RSU-22 personnel are coordinating the 
details of the proposed referendum through the Town Clerk’s office. 
 

5. Public Comment – Chairman Sirois called for public comments and 
Recreation Committee member Jane Jarvi asked about the composition of 
the Council’s Committees and whether motions and seconds should be made 
only by those on each Committee. She said she is looking for clarification to 
understand the Committee process. Chairman Sirois said that motions and 
seconds have been accepted by any Councilor present, and Mayor McPike 
noted that non-Committee members in attendance do not contribute for the 
purpose of establishing a quorum of the Committee. Councilor Marble said 
that Ms. Jarvi’s question warrants more consideration. Ms. Jarvi asked what 
is the purpose of Committees if any Councilor can vote? She said that the 
Councilors each invest a great deal of time, and that she thinks the 
Committee process was initially intended to conserve members’ time. Mayor 
McPike said the Committee process benefits every Councilor so that they are 
part of each issue from the beginning. Chairman Sirois said that, because of 



the work in Committees, Council meetings tend to be quick and efficient. 
Manager Jennings noted that the Council Rules would be reviewed at the first 
meeting in January.  

6. Committee Member Comments – None.

7. Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:46 PM. 

Respectfully submitted –   
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 



TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 

Order 2017-07 

Adoption: December XX, 2017 

 

ORDER ADOPTING UPDATED TRANSFER STATION DECAL POLICY 
 

ORDERED, that the Town Council hereby approves an updated Transfer Station Decal 

Issuance Policy, to read as written below. Text additions from the previous version of the 

Policy are shown as underlined text; text deletions are marked with strikethrough. 

 

 

TRANSFER STATION DECAL ISSUANCE POLICY 

 

The Hampden Transfer Station is for the use of Hampden residential property owners and 

renters who occupy single family residential units or a residence in a multi-unit 

development of four or fewer units.  No vehicle will be allowed entry to the Transfer 

Station without a current decal. A grace period is provided for vehicles with a valid decal 

from the prior year, which will be allowed entry during the month of January only. 

Decals may be purchased at the Town Office during normal business hours at a cost 

specified in the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinance. 

 

1. The vehicle registration of the vehicle on which the decal will go must be 

presented at the time of sticker decal issuance. 

2. To qualify for a residential decal, a vehicle must be registeredapplicants must 

provide proof of current residence in Hampden.  Residents who otherwise qualify 

for a sticker decal but who have company-owned vehicles not registered in 

Hampden , without the company name or logo on the vehicle, may receive a paper 

pass for that vehicle for the year for the $10 feeresidential decal pursuant to 

Section 4 below. 

3. Seasonal Non-rResident applicants must own single family residential property 

not used solely for rental purposes and provide proof of vehicle registration. An 

owner-occupant of property that includes one or more residential rental units will 

be eligible to purchase a decal. 

4. Businesses are not generally eligible to purchase decals or utilize the Transfer 

Station. No stickers Decals will only be issued for commercial 

construction/contractor vehicles registered to a business, and/or with company 

name or logo on the vehicle, if the vehicle is owned by an eligible resident of 

Hampden or serves as the resident’s personal vehicle. In this situation, the owner 

of the vehicle will be required to provide documentation that the company has a 

current commercial waste disposal contract, . The requirement to document a 

commercial waste disposal contract may be waived for companies that do not 

generate commercial waste in the normal course of business (i.e. accountants, 

realtors). regardless of place of registration. 

Ivan P. McPike (Mayor, A/L) 

Stephen L. Wilde (1) 

Dennis R. Marble (2) 

Terry McAvoy (3) 

David I. Ryder (4) 

 Mark S. Cormier (A/L) 

Gregory J. Sirois (A/L) 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-a



5. Stickers Decals will not be issued to trucks other than pickups with a regular pick-

up bed of no more than 8 feet. 

6. Transfer station decals must be permanently affixed to the inside of the 

windshield on the driver’s side of the vehicle for which it was issued. Plate 

numbers on the decal must match the plate number on the vehicle. 

7. Vehicles without a decal or appropriate paper pass a Temporary Vehicle Pass will 

not be allowed access to the transfer station. 

8. Decals are non-refundable. A replacement decal will not be provided unless the 

original decal purchased is returned to the Town Office. A refund for Refrigerant 

Disposal Stickers will not be provided unless the original sticker purchased is 

returned to the Town Office in saleable condition. 

9. A Temporary Vehicle Pass usable only on dates specified on the Pass will be sold 

to seasonal residents, and non-resident caretakers of local residents, at a cost 

specified in the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinance. Seasonal residents seeking a 

Temporary Vehicle Pass will be required to provide documentation of the term of 

local rental. Non-resident caretakers of local residents will be required to provide 

documentation of their relationship to the local resident(s) under their care. Upon 

documentation of local residence (or seasonal occupancy), a Temporary Vehicle 

Pass may be issued for a rental car. 

10. A Temporary Vehicle Pass may be issued to a non-Hampden resident living 

locally only upon documentation that the person is living in Hampden on a 

temporary basis due to displacement from their primary residence resulting from 

fire, mold remediation, etc.  

7.11. The holder of a Temporary Vehicle Pass must accompany the vehicle for 

which the Pass was obtained. Commercial vehicles or contractor vehicles or larger 

than a full-sized pick-up are not eligible for a Temporary Vehicle Pass. 

 

This policy was amended by the Hampden Town Council on 2/17/2009, and on 

10/5/2015 and on 12/XX/2017. The effective date of the revised policy is December XX, 

2017. 

 

Town Clerk:    ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

 

_____________________________ _____________________________________ 

Paula Scott 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 



Rev. 10/05/2015 

TOWN OF HAMPDEN 
IN THE TOWN COUNCIL 

 

Order 2017-08 

Adoption: December XX, 2017 

 

ORDER ADOPTING UPDATED TRANSFER STATION RULES & REGULATIONS  

 

ORDERED, that the Town Council hereby approves updated Transfer Station Rules and Regulations, 

to read as written on the attached pages. Text additions from the previous version of the Rules & 

Regulations are shown as underlined text; text deletions are marked with strikethrough. 

 

This policy was amended by the Hampden Town Council on 10/5/2015 and on 12/XX/2017. The 

effective date of the revised policy is December XX, 2017. 

 

 

 

Town Clerk:     ORDERED by a majority of the Town Council: 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________________ 

Paula Scott 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________ 

 

 

Ivan P. McPike (Mayor, A/L) 

Stephen L. Wilde (1) 

Dennis R. Marble (2) 

Terry McAvoy (3) 

David I. Ryder (4) 

 Mark S. Cormier (A/L) 

Gregory J. Sirois (A/L) 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
3-b



Rev. 10/05/2015 

T0WN OF HAMPDEN 

SOLID WASTE TRANSFER STATION RULES & REGULATIONS 

 

The Town of Hampden has a Solid Waste Transfer Station located at the Public Works Facility 
on the Canaan Road. This facility is for disposal of Hampden residential trash only.  

 No Commercial Haulers allowed 
 No Contractor vehicles allowed 

 
PERMITSTRANSFER STATION DECALS 
A permit decal on the vehicle is required for access to the facility. Permits Decals are available at 
the Town Office at a cost specified in the Town of Hampden Fees Ordinanceof $10 per sticker per 
vehicle per calendar year.  A current vehicle registration must be presented annually in 
order to obtain a stickerdecal. Eligibility requirements are specified in the Transfer Station 
Decal Issuance Policy. Only year round residents or seasonal residents who do not use their 
property for rental purposes are eligible to purchase stickers. Businesses and residents of 
apartment or private complexes with more than four units are not eligible to purchase stickers 
or utilize the Transfer Station.  No vehicle will be allowed entry to the Transfer Station after 
February 1st of each year without a current decal. A grace period is provided for vehicles with a 

valid decal from the prior year, which will be allowed entry during the month of January only. 
 
A one-day permitTemporary Vehicle Pass is available for a resident to obtain in order to use a 
borrowed vehicle. To acquire this, bring the number of your existing permit to the Town Office 
and ask for a Temporary Vehicle Permit.  The permit is available at no charge and is valid for one 
day only. You must accompany the vehicle for which you obtained the permit and the vehicle 
cannot be a commercial or contractor vehicle or larger than a full-sized pick upbased on 
eligibility and requirements specified in the Transfer Station Decal Policy. 
 

HOURS OF OPERATION   CLOSED ALL LEGAL HOLIDAYS 
MONDAY – CLOSED    New Year’s Day  Labor Day 
TUESDAY – CLOSED    Martin Luther King Day Columbus Day 
WEDNESDAY – 10 A.M. – 6 P.M.  President’s Day  Veteran’s Day  
THURSDAY – 10 A.M. – 6 P.M.  Patriot’s Day   Thanksgiving Day  
FRIDAY – 10 A.M. – 6 P.M.   Memorial Day   Day after Thanksgiving  
SATURDAY – 8 A.M. – 4 P.M.   4th of July   Christmas Day    
SUNDAY – 8 A.M. – 4 P.M.        
      EARLY CLOSURES 
      December 24 (close at noon) 
      December 31 (close at 2 pm)            
WEATHER RELATED CLOSURES 
During severe winter weather, the DPW Director may close the Transfer Station on a temporary 
basis to direct available personnel resources toward weather-related needs. All such temporary 
closures will be posted to the Town’s website and Facebook page with as much prior notice as 
possible. 

 
DISPOSAL SCHEDULE 

SOLID WASTE - 
ACCEPTED ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS OPEN.  



Rev. 10/05/2015 

SHARPS DISPOSAL – 
 ACCEPTED ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS OPEN.  THERE IS A 

SEPARATE RECEPTACLE AT THE TRANSFER STATION FOR SHARPS DISPOSAL 
SWAP SHOP ITEMS – 

ARE ACCEPTED AT THE ‘SWAP SHOP’ ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS 
OPEN, AND MAY BE TAKEN FROM THE ‘SWAP SHOP’ ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER 
STATION IS OPEN. 

RECYCLABLES – 
 ACCEPTED ON ANY DAY THAT THE TRANSFER STATION IS OPEN. 
CONSTRUCTION & DEMOLITION DEBRIS, WOOD, METAL, APPLIANCES AND ASPHALT 
SHINGLES – 

THESE ITEMS ARE ACCEPTED ON THE 2ND AND 4TH WEEKEND OF EACH MONTH ONLY.   
 
REFRIGERANT DISPOSAL FEE –  
 There is a $15 fee for the disposal of any appliance with refrigerant (refrigerators, 
freezers, some air conditioners).  A permit sticker for the disposal of such items must be picked 
up at the Town Office prior to disposal, and these items can only be taken to the transfer station 
on the second and fourth weekends of each month. Permit stickers must be affixed to the item. 
 
BEFORE YOU GO TO THE TRANSFER STATION DISPOSAL TIPS… 
 
TELEVISIONS, COMPUTER PARTS and FLUORESCENT LAMPS are accepted any time the Transfer 
Station is open. 
TIRES all must have rims removed. No more than four tires will be accepted. 
PAINT CANS must be empty and rinsed out with lids removed. 
METAL BARRELS, 5, 30, AND 55 GALLON DRUMS must have at least one end removed and they 
must be washed out. 
LEAVES, GRASS, AND YARD AND GARDEN CLIPPINGS must be bagged and disposed of in the 
trash compactors along with solid waste. 
TREE LIMBS AND BRANCHES – Must not exceed 10’ in length and are acceptable only on the 2nd 
and 4th weekends of each month. 
 
ZERO-SORT RECYCLING 
 The Town of Hampden operates a Zero-Sort recycling program at the Transfer Station. 
There is a separate compactor at the facility in which many recyclables are deposited.  There is 
no need to separate these recyclable materials, however, if they are disposed of in a bag, the bag 
must be clear plastic in order to be placed in the compactor.  
 
 Recyclable materials that can be deposited in the Zero-Sort Compactor include: 
 Magazines & Books    Newspaper 
 File folders & office paper   Mail & Greeting cards 
 Corrugated cardboard   Paperboard boxes 
 Paper Cartons    Plastic Containers 
 Large Rigid Plastics    Metal cans 
 Glass bottles 
  
 Non-recyclable items that cannot be deposited in the Zero-Sort compactor include: 
 Plastic bags     Mirrors 



Rev. 10/05/2015 

 Window Glass    Light bulbs 
 Dishes      Pyrex 
 Ceramics     Paper Towels 
 Facial tissue     Styrofoam 
 Recyclables containing food waste  Paints 
 Oils      Hazardous material    

Needles     Syringes 
VCR tapes     CD’s/DVD’s 
Scrap Metal     Pots or Pans 

 
 

UNACCEPTABLE WASTES 
 AUTOMOTIVE PARTS containing hazardous fluids including batteries, engines, 

transmissions, etc. These items should be disposed of in a salvage yard. 
 STUMPS will not be accepted. 
 HAZARDOUS WASTE will not be accepted. This includes paint thinners, cleaners, 

poisons, asbestos, chemicals, and petroleum products such as gas, oil and 
kerosene. 

 
COMPOSTING 
 The Town of Hampden is making every effort to protect our environment and to keep 
waste disposal costs as low as possible. In addition to observing the guidelines above, you can 
help reduce the amount of waste that you produce in your home.  Home composting, for 
example, is easy to do and not only reduces the waste stream, but produces usable garden 
fertilizer.  The Town participates annually in the State Planning Office Home Composter Program 
by subsidizing the cost of home composters for interested Hampden residents. To find out more 
about home composting and when the next composter order will be placed - call Rosemary the 
Department of Public Works at 862-3337. 
 
 

QUESTIONS? CALL ROSEMARY THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AT 862-3337. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  December 13, 2017 

RE:  Mold in the Public Safety and Town Office building 
 

 

Following up on staff concerns, expressed over time, regarding interior air quality in the 
Public Safety building, we hired a building inspector to conduct an inspection and run 
some samples of what appeared to be mold.  We received the enclosed report on Nov. 
30 which confirms the presence of mold in many locations.  The report recommends 
that a licensed mold remediation company be retained to address the issue. 
 
The exercise room on the lower level has been closed due to the presence of black 
mold. 
 
The initial scope of review was limited to the Public Safety building, not the Town 
Offices, and we wanted to look at remediation of the entire building.  We initially 
requested a proposal for additional investigation and recommendations by a separate 
firm, with the intent that this would lead to a specific scope of work that could be put out 
to bid.  However, the cost proposal was nearly $7,000 and, upon contacting a licensed 
mold remediation vendor, we decided to provide them access to the building so they 
could evaluate the problem and propose remediation based on their findings. 
 
On Friday, December 8, we met with Eastern Mold Remediation, who spent over 6 
hours reviewing the building and have since provided us a proposal for remediation. 
The proposal is 30 pages, quite detailed, including measurements of each room's 
dimensions, specific proposed remediation for each room, indoor humidity testing, etc., 
at a proposed cost of nearly $95,000.1  This is more than triple what we have available 
in the Municipal Building Reserve, and is not the complete cost since other post-
remediation work would be needed (electrical, replacing carpet, replacing floor tile, etc.). 
 
Based on the orders of magnitude costs, I see two potential options to ensure that we 
receive competitive pricing: 
 

1. Prepare a detailed scope, then seek bids.  We do not have the expertise on staff 
to do so, and this would require some cost in order to manage the scoping and 
bidding process. 

2. Alternatively, we could prepare a more limited description of the problem, include 
the McClarie report as an attachment, and invite each prospective vendor to 
perform their own inspections based on the same access to the building that was 

                                            
1 I have not included the Eastern Mold proposal in the meeting packet so as not to potentially 
disadvantage them within a future purchasing process. 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-a  4-b  4-c



provided to Eastern Mold, and propose their own approach to remediation.  Each 
prospective vendor would be invited to propose both a scope and budget.  This 
would not result in an “apples to apples” comparison, because different vendors 
may recommend different remediation.  However, this is the recommended 
approach to purchasing, in order to move forward more quickly and to avoid the 
need for up-front costs.  

 
I therefore request Council authorization to waive the Bid Procedures for Public 
Purchasing pursuant to Sec. 4(a), to allow us to solicit quotations from at least 
three prospective vendors, rather than preparing a detailed scope and formal 
RFP.  Due to the anticipated cost of the work, the award of a contract to a specific 
vendor would come back before the Council for approval. 
 
I also seek Council approval of a budget adjustment in order to transfer $100,000 
from FY18 Overlay to the Municipal Building Reserve for the purpose of mold 
remediation and related expenses.  The FY18 mil rate resulted in an overlay amount 
of $234,508 which would be reduced by the requested budget adjustment.  By leaving 
the current balance in the Municipal Building Reserve ($31,598) intact, this would not 
reduce the funds available for other anticipated reserve funding projects including the 
public safety flooring ($20k of the balance is earmarked for this purpose) and $5k 
earmarked for future roof replacement. 
 
Finally, I request Council authorization of Municipal Building Reserve funds in the 
amount of $100,000.  This is not expected to cover the complete costs of remediation, 
but would to allow us to proceed in good faith with inviting vendor proposals.   
 
The authorized reserve funding would also be eligible for costs related to mold 
remediation, many if not all would probably not be included in the primary work scope.  
A preliminary list of potential (or known) related costs follows: 
 
Other Costs related to Mold Remediation 

- Duct cleaning 

- HVAC system cleaning 

- Additional ventilation in lower level (new ceiling fans) 

- Replace stained or damaged ceiling tiles (included in proposed Eastern scope) 

- Electrical services to swap out motion sensor switches for improved ventilation 

- Staff overtime as necessary to prepare the building for remediation, remove all 

files and re-file, etc.  

- Potential security company or staff time to monitor the building during contractor 

work.  (Eastern’s proposal was based on their weekend and 24-hour shift rate). 

- Contractor to remove floor tiles, carpet, base molding, etc. 

- Materials 

o Floor tile, carpet etc. 

o Replacement equipment (treadmill, TV, mattresses, mattress covers, fans) 

- Possible future dehumidification 

- Plastic totes for all existing files 

- Potential housing for live-in – fire intern 

- Cost of potential closure of town office during anti-microbial treatment 



 
If any of these related costs would exceed $10,000, the Council may be requested to 
separately authorize purchasing via a quotation system in favor of an RFP. 
 
We expect some disruption of Town operations will be unavoidable to accommodate the 
work, which may include limited closure of the building or certain departments.  Once a 
vendor is selected we would put together a schedule with the goal of getting the work 
done efficiently while minimizing disruptions. 
 
We have submitted information to our Property/Casualty Insurer, MMA, and we expect 
that insurance may cover up to $50,000 of costs.  We hope to have more definitive 
information on the insurance coverage before Monday’s meeting. 

























townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-d













townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-e



12/7/2017 1 of 1

Eligible Costs Incurred, Proposed for Environmental Trust Reimbursement
1,856.80$      4,185.00$        2,949.35$      5,085.00$      340.77$         

Date Paid Vendor Purpose Expense Category of Stormwater Management Cost Source of Proposed Reimbursement

Maintenance
Compliance 

Documentation
Supplies

Contracted 

Services

Training/ 

Travel
Principal Income Receipt

Date to Env. 

Trust

07/01/17 08/16/17
 Bangor Area Stormwater 

Group 
 2017-18 membership dues 4,000.00$     4,000.00$        4,000.00$          Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
1,548.00$     1,548.00$      1,548.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/12/17 08/02/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 180.00$        180.00$         180.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/19/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 720.00$        720.00$         720.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 Whitmore Contracting Inc.  Griffin Ave culvert replacement 4,185.00$     4,185.00$      4,185.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 540.00$        540.00$         540.00$            Y 9/12/2017

08/15/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

08/22/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

09/04/17 09/06/17 Sean Currier

 Mileage and expenses for DPW 

Director and Code Enf. Officer to 

attend 2-day stormwater training, 

Portland 

340.77$        340.77$         340.77$            Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
(1,548.00)$    (1,548.00)$     (1,548.00)$         N/A

1 12/12/2017

08/09/17 09/13/17 NASCO  Write-on bags for sampling 62.15$          62.15$          62.15$              Y 12/12/2017

08/22/17 09/28/17 Harriman Sons  Digging out Patterson Rd culvert 900.00$        900.00$         900.00$            Y 12/12/2017

09/14/17 09/20/17 00134 Drumlin LLC  TECHNICAL CONSULTANT 4,036.00$     4,036.00$   Y 12/12/2017

10/03/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 838.40$        838.40$         838.40$            Y 12/12/2017

10/04/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

11/01/17 11/15/17 State of Maine
 MS4 General Permit fee for Plan 

Year 5 
185.00$        185.00$           185.00$            Y 12/12/2017

11/09/17 11/29/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

YTD reimbursed to General Fund: 13,140.97$        

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund (12/12/17): 5,311.95$          

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund: 18,452.92$     

YTD For 12/12/17

Total from Principal 4,036.00$          4,036.00$          

Total from Income 14,416.92$        1,275.95$          

Budgeted revenue 72,345.00$        FY18 Town Budget

Remaining budgeted revenue (FY18) 53,892.08$        

1
 Note: This expense was reimbursed by the Trust Committee at its 9/12/17 meeting. However it was reclassified as an FY17 expense, so the amount reimbursed is credited against the current reimbursement request.

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager

12/7/2017

Angus Jennings, Town Manager M:\!Angus files\Environmental Trust\Workbook of expenditures for Environmental Trust reimbursement



townmanager
Typewritten Text

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-f



12/7/2017 1 of 1

Eligible Costs Incurred, Proposed for Environmental Trust Reimbursement
1,856.80$      4,185.00$        2,949.35$      5,085.00$      340.77$         

Date Paid Vendor Purpose Expense Category of Stormwater Management Cost Source of Proposed Reimbursement

Maintenance
Compliance 

Documentation
Supplies

Contracted 

Services

Training/ 

Travel
Principal Income Receipt

Date to Env. 

Trust

07/01/17 08/16/17
 Bangor Area Stormwater 

Group 
 2017-18 membership dues 4,000.00$     4,000.00$        4,000.00$          Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
1,548.00$     1,548.00$      1,548.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/12/17 08/02/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 180.00$        180.00$         180.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/19/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 720.00$        720.00$         720.00$            Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 Whitmore Contracting Inc.  Griffin Ave culvert replacement 4,185.00$     4,185.00$      4,185.00$          Y 9/12/2017

07/21/17 08/09/17 E.J. Prescott  MDOT blanket 540.00$        540.00$         540.00$            Y 9/12/2017

08/15/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

08/22/17 09/13/17 E.J. Prescott
 Materials for stormdrain ditch 

lining erosion control 
813.60$        813.60$         813.60$            Y 9/12/2017

09/04/17 09/06/17 Sean Currier

 Mileage and expenses for DPW 

Director and Code Enf. Officer to 

attend 2-day stormwater training, 

Portland 

340.77$        340.77$         340.77$            Y 9/12/2017

06/14/17 07/19/17  National Stormwater Center 
 Training fees for 2 employees to 

attend 2-day training 
(1,548.00)$    (1,548.00)$     (1,548.00)$         N/A

1 12/12/2017

08/09/17 09/13/17 NASCO  Write-on bags for sampling 62.15$          62.15$          62.15$              Y 12/12/2017

08/22/17 09/28/17 Harriman Sons  Digging out Patterson Rd culvert 900.00$        900.00$         900.00$            Y 12/12/2017

09/14/17 09/20/17 00134 Drumlin LLC  TECHNICAL CONSULTANT 4,036.00$     4,036.00$   Y 12/12/2017

10/03/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 838.40$        838.40$         838.40$            Y 12/12/2017

10/04/17 10/25/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

11/01/17 11/15/17 State of Maine
 MS4 General Permit fee for Plan 

Year 5 
185.00$        185.00$           185.00$            Y 12/12/2017

11/09/17 11/29/17 E.J. Prescott  Pipe/materials for culverts 419.20$        419.20$         419.20$            Y 12/12/2017

YTD reimbursed to General Fund: 13,140.97$        

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund (12/12/17): 5,311.95$          

Total proposed for reimbursement to General Fund: 18,452.92$     

YTD For 12/12/17

Total from Principal 4,036.00$          4,036.00$          

Total from Income 14,416.92$        1,275.95$          

Budgeted revenue 72,345.00$        FY18 Town Budget

Remaining budgeted revenue (FY18) 53,892.08$        

1
 Note: This expense was reimbursed by the Trust Committee at its 9/12/17 meeting. However it was reclassified as an FY17 expense, so the amount reimbursed is credited against the current reimbursement request.

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager

12/7/2017

Angus Jennings, Town Manager M:\!Angus files\Environmental Trust\Workbook of expenditures for Environmental Trust reimbursement



To: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
From: Karen M. Cullen, AICP, Town Planner 
Date: December 14, 2017 
RE: Acquisition of Floating Dock – Request for Waiver of Purchasing Procedures 

This request is to waive the purchasing requirements under the Town Public Purchasing Procedures 
for the purchase of the floating docks for the public boat landing on the Penobscot River, located 
adjacent to the marina. This waiver is sought because there is only one vendor we can find that 
we feel confident can provide floating docks within our timeframe (installation in spring 2018) 
that can withstand the varying tides and challenging currents in this location. When preparing the 
grant application for this project, our partner Hamlin’s Marine had contacted Custom Float Service 
to obtain cost information for this floating dock. Hamlin’s Marine has advised us that they have the 
most confidence in this company to get the job done well, in budget, and on time because they 
have significant experience working with municipalities, they have the capacity to complete the 
job in time for installation this spring, they build a very robust dock system that will probably last 
twice as long as the current floating docks, and they specialize in dock systems (they do not do 
general marine or boat yard work).   

Town of Hampden 

Land & Building Services 

Memorandum 

4-g



townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-h



  
TO:  Finance Committee and Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  December 13, 2017 

RE:  Recommended sewer abatement, 29 Sunrise Lane 
 

 

Please find enclosed a resident’s request for sewer abatement. 
 

The sewer abatement process has worked well since the Sewer Ordinance was 
amended in January 2017 to define a process for considering abatements. However, 
the present situation is not addressed by the Ordinance, which includes a “look back” at 
the property’s prior water consumption as a basis for allowable abatement. 
 

This request relates to a newly constructed home with no water consumption history. 
However, we are aware that the homes on Sunrise Lane did not initially have lawns, 
and the resident’s account of heavy lawn watering for a period of months makes sense.  
 

This situation would typically justify an abatement since a portion of the water usage 
reflected on the water bill (which is the basis for sewer billing) was never discharged 
into the sewer system and, therefore, did not add to the Town’s sewer costs. 
 

Hampden Sewer Ordinance, Sec. 10.3. Abatements: Abatements for use of water for lawn 
sprinklers, garden hoses, filling of swimming pools, or other uses of significant volumes of 
water, which do not enter the public sewer, may be made on application to the Town.  
 

The adjusted billing determined shall not be less than the highest billing or adjusted billing 
applicable to the property during the previous three quarters. The Town shall require 
verification of the significant sewer usage which is cause for the requested abatement.  
 

The Town Manager or his/her designee shall approve or deny abatements. No more than 
one (1) abatement can be given in one (1) calendar year except upon petition to the Town 
Council. 

 

To estimate a reasonable “baseline” water usage for the property, we looked at three 
other sewer accounts for homes occupied by a single resident. Records for the three 
“comp” properties for the prior three quarters showed water consumption of 900-900-
900, 500-400-500, and 700-600-600 (all in CF). 
 

The Ordinance provides that abatements shall not reduce the billed amount below the 
highest of the previous three quarters. If 900 CF is used as the baseline, this would 
support an abatement of 4,900 CF on the bill for 29 Sunrise Lane, which would translate 
to a bill reduction of $568.40 (from $672.80 reduced to $104.40). 
 

I would typically approve an abatement based on the facts presented. However, based 
on the unusual circumstance in this case, and the methodology which doesn’t track 
exactly to the Ordinance language, I am presenting it to the Council for action.  

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 

townmanager
Typewritten Text
4-i



Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Request for Sewer Abatement 
1 message

Seren Bruce Mon, Nov 20, 2017 at 12:04 PM
To: townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov

Dear Town Manager, 

Danielle instructed me to write to you and request an abatement on my sewer bill. 

I purchased 29 Sunrise Lane on June 29th of this year and moved in on June 30th.  My lawn had just been put in about a
week or so before I moved in and required daily watering. I ran 2 hoses with sprinklers at full force daily for approximately
2 hours a day on days when we did not receive rain.  This was daily for July, August and September, about 2 times
weekly for October.  I estimate that for the first 3 months I watered 5 out of 7 days each week as we had a terribly dry
summer. My lot is just under .5 acres. 

I wasn’t aware of the summer meter until late in the season at which time I purchased one. At that point I was watering
infrequently. My meter currently reads 700. 

I am a retired widow, living alone in my new home. Hope this info helps in estimating an abatement! Let me know if there
is any other information I can provide. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Seren Bruce 
29 Sunrise Lane 
Hampden, ME






